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Introduction
The Environmental Scan from the Boy 

Scouts of America is a supplement to the 
National Strategic Plan and is provided as a 
tool to assist with:

•	Developing local council strategic plans
•	Creating marketing tools
•	Recruiting volunteers
•	Improving fund-raising effectiveness
This Environmental Scan provides the most 

up-to-date data available from government 
agencies and other BSA sources at the time 
of publication and is updated annually. 
However, please note that data for various 
topics often do not cover identical time 
periods. Sources of information are provided 
throughout the publication and in the final 
section as reference points for further study. 
The bullet points beneath the charts provide 
insights and additional information to enhance 
understanding of the issues.

The Environmental Scan is divided into 
13 main sections ranging from changes in 
household structure to trends among chartered 
organizations. Please use the table of contents 
to navigate to the sections you wish to review 
and return to the table of contents to select 
the next topic of interest.

Trends Affecting the Boy Scouts 
of America in the 21st Century

Several historic population trends in the 
United States affecting the Boy Scouts of 
America continue to emerge. Among notable 
trends are the population of the United 
States exceeding 300 million and the ethnic 
population exceeding 100 million. The black/
African American population in the U.S. 
now exceeds 40 million, while the Hispanic/
Latino population continues to be the fastest 
growing ethnic group, accounting for almost 
half (1.4 million) of U.S. population growth 
over the previous two years. Along with ethnic 
population growth, post-Katrina migration is 
reflected in state population changes in the 
South. These trends, along with the overall 
growth of the U.S. population, will have 
a great impact on future social, political, 
economic, educational, and employment 
trends in the United States. The trends that 
are most profoundly shaping these groups and 
American society are outlined below:

1.	 Growth in Youth Population
•	 The U.S. birthrate reached a peak 

in 1990, then declined until 1997. 
Since 1997, birthrates have increased. 
Births in 2004 were greater than 4.1 
million for the first time since 1991 
and reached 4.3 million in 2007.

•	 Nationally, the total Cub Scout 
population is expected to grow 1.8 
percent over the next five years. 
However, growth is not equally 
distributed across regions. The Cub 
Scout population is expected to 
increase in the Southern (6.0%) and 
Western (2.0%) regions. In contrast, 
the Cub Scout population is projected 
to decline in the Northeast Region 
(–2.9%) and remain relatively stable 
(0.4%) in the Central Region over the 
next five years.
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	 Implications for the BSA
•	 Opportunities and challenges are 

available for increasing membership 
and expanding the density of youth 
served. Developing new units in the 
Southern and Western regions, while 
increasing density in the Northeast 
and Central regions, is essential to 
address the youth population growth 
trends, as called for in the 2006-2010 
National Strategic Plan.

•	 Messages should be targeted 
separately to youth by showing the fun 
and exciting adventures, and to their 
parents by explaining how Scouting 
can help their child succeed.

•	 The growing teen population presents 
opportunities for growing membership 
in Venturing.

2.	 Increasing Ethnic Diversity
•	 The millennials and post-millennials 

are the most diverse population 
in American history. Millennials 
and post-millennials are the first 
generations growing up with the ability 
to communicate quickly with people 
of other nations and cultures via 
technology such as the Internet. Such 
exchange is significantly contributing 
to the reduction of racial and cultural 
prejudices. As a result, millennials and 
post-millennials are more likely to be 
tolerant generations.

•	 The Census Bureau projects the 
percentage of white residents in the 
United States will decrease to less 
than 50 percent by 2050. States that 
are at least 50 percent non-white or 
Hispanic/Latino are Hawaii (76.5%), 
New Mexico (56.9%), California 
(56.2%), and Texas (50.8%).

•	 The Hispanic/Latino American 
population is the largest ethnic group, 
with 45 million U.S. residents.

•	 Around four of 10 (42%) public school 
students were non-white or Hispanic/
Latino in 2003, markedly up from 22 
percent in 1972.

•	 The immigrant population continues 
to grow. In 2007, there were 37.3 
million people who were born in other 
countries (12.5%) living in the United 
States. This compares to 4.7 percent 
in 1970.

•	 The foreign-born population is younger. 
Around four of 10 are between the 
ages of 25 and 44, compared to just 
over a quarter percent of the native 
population.

•	 Because the Hispanic/Latino 
population skews younger, they are also 
more likely than other ethnic groups to 
have children of Scouting age.

•	 Around two-thirds of the foreign-
born population live in the West and 
South, and around nine of 10 live in 
metropolitan areas, compared to eight 
out of 10 U.S. born.

Implications for the BSA
•	 Councils must continue to be aware 

of the ethnic and cultural diversity 
in their communities and understand 
the needs of youths and their families 
in those segments. Strategic Plan 
Research (02-1058) and Successful 
Recruiting (02-1066) provide 
councils with information about these 
populations and their needs.

•	 Awareness of Scouting and its mission 
and values tends to be lower among 
recent immigrants and minority 
populations. To reach them, councils 
will need to make a concerted effort 
to raise awareness by being visible 
in the community, partnering with 
credible organizations, securing 
community leaders as spokespeople, 
and communicating the long-term 
benefits and values of Scouting to 
those segments.
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•	 Councils need to target marketing 
messages toward diverse groups who 
have children in the millennial and 
post-millennial generations.

•	 Council volunteers and leaders should 
be representative of the population 
within the council area.

 3.	 Changing Families
•	 People are marrying and having 

children later in life.
•	 Although the majority of children 

live in two-parent households, the 
percentage of traditional families, 
i.e. married couples with children, 
is decreasing.

•	 In 2006, the birthrate among teens 
ages 15-19 years old increased for 
the first time since 1991, from 40.5 
births per thousand in 2005 to 41.9 
per thousand in 2006. However, the 
teen birthrate remained far below the 
peak of 61.9 per thousand in 1991.

•	 The percentage of U.S. births to 
unmarried mothers increased from 
36.9 percent in 2005 to 38.5 percent 
in 2006.

•	 Fewer adults are marrying. The 
percentage of married adults has 
declined from 72 percent in 1970 to 
50.2 percent in 2007.

•	 Single-parent families are becoming 
increasingly more common; however, 
the percent has remained relatively 
stable since 1996.

	 Implications for the BSA
•	 Councils must communicate the 

importance and value of positive adult 
role models in Scouting.

•	 Scouting must welcome single-parent 
families and recognize the time 
constraints and challenges these 
parents face.

4.	 Dual-income Families
•	 More than seven of 10 mothers who 

have children younger than 18 are 
employed outside of the home.

•	 Women make up just less than half of 
the workforce in the United States.

•	 Men continue to become increasingly 
involved in domestic responsibilities and 
volunteer activities in the community.

•	 Both parents are spending more 
time at work and less time with their 
children.

•	 Children are increasingly cared for 
by someone other than their mother 
or father.

Implications for the BSA
•	 Councils need to communicate the 

benefits of Scouting, such as spending 
more time with and helping their 
children.

•	 Units should offer multiple chances 
to join in order to meet available 
schedule times.

5.	 Time-Stressed Families
•	 New patterns of work and leisure 

are resulting in families having to 
choose between competing activities 
and interests to accommodate their 
busy schedules.

•	 About half of U.S. teenagers have 
part-time or full-time jobs.

•	 Dual–income and single parents have 
less time to become involved as full-
time leaders but are willing to help out.

	 Implications for the BSA
•	 Councils should address time 

pressures by emphasizing the 
benefits of Scouting: bonding and 
family togetherness, building self-
esteem, using time constructively, and 
supporting family values.



5

E n v i r o n m e n t a l  S c a n  2 0 0 9

Back to Table of Contents

•	 Councils need to be sensitive to 
parents’ time constraints when 
scheduling and developing programs 
and offering training. 

•	 Units should present the variety of 
volunteer opportunities available and 
the time commitments so that all 
parents can select a volunteer role that 
meets their scheduling needs.

•	 National outcomes studies such as 
The Values of Americans, A Year in the 
Life of a Cub Scout … Boy Scout … 
Venturer, the Summer Camp Outcomes 
Study, and the Volunteer Outcomes 
Study should be used when families 
are being introduced to the benefits 
of Scouting. Most study materials are 
available in both English and Spanish 
to meet the council’s marketing needs.

6.	 Changing Education Trends
•	 The public school dropout rate 

remains at around 5 percent. However, 
Hispanics continue to drop out at 
higher rates than other groups (9.0%, 
compared to 6.7% for blacks/African 
Americans and 4.1% for whites).

•	 Higher education institutions have 
increased enrollments as a greater 
percentage of high school graduates 
are entering colleges and universities. 
This increase in demand is driving up 
the costs. Competition for acceptance 
and scholarships has become fierce.

•	 More youth are enrolling in private 
schools and charter schools or are 
being homeschooled. Homeschooling 
is projected to grow at a rate of 15 
to 20 percent annually through at 
least 2010.

•	 Outside interests want to ensure that 
no private non-academic organizations 
operate from or within public schools.

Implications for the BSA
•	 Councils should continue to build and 

enhance relationships with school 
administrators and boards while 
seeking new venues for recruiting 
youth and being visible in the 
communities. The Values of Americans 
(02-849) provides information about 
how Scouting helps youth improve and 
build interest in academic areas.

•	 Councils should continue developing 
and enhancing recruiting efforts for 
youth in private and charter schools 
and homeschooled youth.

•	 Councils should meet the needs of 
youth by providing programs rich with 
education and career development 
tools and promoting the benefits of 
Learning for Life and Exploring.

7.	 Aging of Society
•	 As people age, their economic 

priorities are more focused on 
preparing for retirement and caring for 
elderly parents.

•	 People are living longer, leading 
healthier lives, and remaining more 
active into their later years.

•	 The number of men older than age 
55 is increasing at a faster rate than 
women older than 55; however, the 
total number of these women still 
exceeds the number of men.

•	 Between 2002 and 2012, 35 million 
workers will leave their occupations 
permanently and will need to be 
replaced, according to the Bureau of 
Labor Statistics.

Implications for the BSA
•	 Councils should capitalize on the 

resources offered by the vibrant 
over-50 population by inviting them 
to volunteer.
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8.	 Growth of Technology and the  
	 Information Age

•	 Around eight of 10 American 
households have at least one computer.

•	 Eighty-seven percent of 8- to 17-year 
olds have access to a computer.

•	 Nine of 10 (91.5%) Boys’ Life 
subscribers play video games.

•	 More than seven of 10 (71.6%) Boys’ 
Life subscribers use a computer for 
school work.

•	 Educational software is being 
developed to acquaint post-millennials 
with computer technology for those as 
young as six months.

Implications for the BSA
•	 Councils should update programs 

to use current technology while 
maintaining core values.

•	 The BSA should take advantage of 
technology and the Internet to market 
the programs. In marketing, highlight 
the use of technology as one benefit of 
Scouting.

9.	 Attitudes Toward Giving to and  
	 Volunteering for Charitable Organizations

•	 Over the last five years, Americans 
have become more selective in their 
giving to charitable organizations.

•	 Half of Americans now believe 
that giving one’s time to charitable 
organizations is more important than 
giving money. This is especially true 
among young adults (ages 18 to 34).

•	 A strong relationship exists between 
how much a person is involved in a 
religious organization and how much 
that person gives to and volunteers for 
religious and other charities.

•	 Americans give their time and money 
to non-profits that match their beliefs.

•	 People say the reasons they do not 
volunteer is that they have not been 
asked, or that they do not know how to 
get involved.

Implications for the BSA
•	 Councils need to emphasize how 

Scouting programs benefit families 
and communities.

•	 Councils should highlight their Good 
Turn for America projects to potential 
donors, volunteers, and other funding 
sources to show how Scouting benefits 
the community.

•	 Councils should ask parents and other 
adults in chartered organizations to 
volunteer and invest financially in 
their council’s future.   

•	 Councils should be more proactive 
in providing information about 
volunteer opportunities and asking 
people to volunteer.

10.	Chartered Organization Trends
•	 The denominations that had consistent 

increases in membership from 2004 
to 2007 were the Catholic Church, 
Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-day 
Saints, and the Assemblies of God.

•	 Many of the larger denominations are 
experiencing flat to slightly decreasing 
membership trends.

•	 Civic organizations have not been 
growing in membership during the 
past decade. This trend is expected 
to continue because of the time 
constraints on most Americans.

•	 Boys & Girls Clubs of America and 
the YMCA have increased in both BSA 
units chartered and youth served.

Implications for the BSA
•	 Councils should strive to achieve 

higher levels of penetration possible 
with traditional chartered organizations 
while expanding the BSA’s reach into 
nontraditional organizations. 

•	 Because of limited access to 
public organizations and declining 
membership in civic organizations, 
councils should foster relationships 
with other private organizations.
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•	 All of the largest religious chartered 
organizations saw a decline in the 
number of BSA youth from 2000 to 
2008.

•	 The three largest religious chartered 
organizations saw a total decline of 
10.1 percent in the number of youth 
from 2000 to 2008.

•	 The largest religious chartered organi-
zation had an increase in the number 
of BSA units from 2000 to 2008.

—BSA National Chartered Organizations 
Report, December 2008

Religious 
Chartered 

Organizations:
BSA MEMBERSHIP 2000–2008

Source: BSA National Chartered Organizations Report, December 2008

BSA Units and Youth by Organization
Youths Youths % Change Units Units % Change
2000 2008 2000–2008 2000 2008 2000–2008

Latter-day Saints 411,367 402,127 -2.2% 32,896 37,146 12.9%
United Methodist 417,425 367,238 -12.0% 11,944 11,499 -3.7%
Catholic 351,296 291,443 -17.0% 9,604 9,265 -3.5%
Presbyterian 144,206 124,861 -13.4% 4,001 3,801 -5.0%
Lutheran 147,824 120,912 -18.2% 4,353 4,176 -4.1%
Baptist 117,644 105,303 -10.5% 5,001 4,351 -13.0%
Episcopal 51,031 41,841 -18.0% 1,427 1,259 -11.8%
United Church of Christ/
Congregational

50,339 40,076 -20.4% 1,401 1,311 -6.4%

Christian Church 
(Disciples of Christ)

37,168 34,401 -7.4% 1,187 1,283 8.1%
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•	 From 2000 to 2008, there was sig-
nificant growth in both units and BSA 
youths through private schools and 
groups of citizens. It should be noted 
that some growth was due to shifting 
of units from public schools to private 
organizations due to ACLU challenges.

—BSA National Chartered 
Organizations Report, 

December 2008

—BSA National Chartered Organizations Report, December 2008

other  
Chartered 

Organizations:
BSA MEMBERSHIP 2000–2008

BSA Units and Youth by Organization
Units Units Youth Youth % Ch. 2000–2008
2000 2008 2000 2008 Units Youth

Groups of citizens 1,936 4,688 55,580 132,255 142.1% 138.0%
Business/Industry 3,439 3,452 69,689 75,905 0.4% 8.9%
PTAs 1,762 3,099 85,663 94,862 75.9% 10.7%
Private schools 1,612 2,025 42,147 94,862 25.6% 125.1%
Community centers 1,340 1,458 27,972 32,427 8.8% 15.9%
Fire departments 1,772 1,386 51,477 34,325 -21.8% -33.3%
Other parent-teacher groups 3,738 4,789 171,605 181,249 28.1% 5.6%
Other community organizations 1,905 2,270 44,263 60,277 19.2% 36.2%



E n v i r o n m e n t a l  S c a n  2 0 0 9

Back to Table of Contents

Sources 
of 

Information



93

E n v i r o n m e n t a l  S c a n  2 0 0 9

Back to Table of Contents

Helpful Web Sites

The Annie E. Casey Foundation
www.aecf.org 
The Annie E. Casey Foundation home page pro-
vides useful information about American youth. 
This organization produces several publications 
that might be helpful for local market research 
efforts.
The Center for Education Reform
www.edreform.com
This site contains the number of chartered 
schools with enrollment data by state.
Center for Women’s Business Research
1411 K St. NW, Suite 1350 
Washington, DC 20005-3407 
202-638-3060  
info@womensbusinessresearch.org 
www.womensbusinessresearch.org  
This site is a source of information about 
women business owners and their enterprises.
Children’s Defense Fund
25 E St. NW 
Washington, DC 20001 
202-628-8787 
cdinfo@childrensdefense.org 
www.childrensdefense.org  
This Web site contains information on a variety 
of issues affecting children. Child health care, 
child care, and education are a few of the top-
ics covered.
The Independent Sector
www.independentsector.org 
This Web site indicates the level of volunteerism 
and charity in the United States, and governance 
and public tax information.

Join Together
One Appleton Street, 4th Floor 
Boston, MA 02116-5223 
617-437-1500 
info@jointogether.org 
www.jointogether.org  
Join Together provides information on teenage 
drug abuse and gun violence. The site also 
provides a list of grants available for programs 
that address drug abuse and gun violence, as 
well as a list of resources on these subjects.

GFK Roper
75 Ninth Avenue, 5th Floor 
New York, NY 10011 
212-599-0700 
info@gfkamerica.com  
www.gfkamerica.com  
Roper is a leading consumer market research 
organization. Their site contains information 
from a variety of research studies, including 
the Roper Youth Report.

The Urban Institute
2100 M Street, NW 
Washington, DC 20037 
202-833-7200 
www.urban.org
This site contains research data on various 
social and public policy issues such as poverty, 
education, unemployment, crime, youth devel-
opment, and welfare reform.

Sources of 
Information
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U.S. Government Sources of  
Current Data

American Fact Finder
factfinder.census.gov 
This Census Bureau site provides updated 
demographic information by state, county, city, 
or zip code.

Bureau of Justice Statistics
www.ojp.usdoj.gov/bjs 
The Bureau of Justice Statistics collects data 
from a number of surveys and from administrative 
sources, including the Uniform Crime Reports.

Bureau of Labor Statistics
stats.bls.gov 
This home page has an extensive menu of sites 
for current social (especially labor) and eco-
nomic data, including unemployment rates and 
consumer price index information.

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC)
www.cdc.gov 
The CDC is the major clearinghouse for infor-
mation on the current prevalence of disease 
and various health conditions and efforts at 
their control and prevention.

Consumer Expenditure Surveys
stats.bls.gov/cex 
This quarterly survey of about 5,000 consumer 
units (similar to households) provides informa-
tion on the purchasing patterns of the U.S. 
population.

Corporation for National and Community Service
www.nationalservice.gov 
www.nationalservice.gov/about/role_impact/
performance_research.asp 
In collaboration with the U.S. Census Bureau 
and the nonprofit coalition Independent 
Sector, the Corporation for National and 
Community Service in 2005 conducted the 
Youth Volunteering and Civic Engagement 
Survey. It explores the state of youth 
volunteering and the connections between 
youth volunteering and the primary social 
institutions to which teenagers are exposed—
family, schools, and religious congregation. 

Crime and Victims Statistics
www.ojp.usdoj.gov 
Residents of a national sample of 60,000 
households were interviewed seven times over 
three years on their experiences with crime 
(both reported and unreported).

Current Population Survey (CPS)
www.census.gov/hhes/cpsdesc.html 
A description of the monthly data from the 
current versions of the CPS is available at 
this site.

High School and Beyond Survey
nces.ed.gov/surveys/hsb 
This longitudinal survey tracks about 15,000 
people who were high school sophomores or 
seniors in 1980; the most recent follow-up 
survey was in 1992–93. Follow-up surveys 
have included questions about completed 
levels of education and income.

Map Stats
quickfacts.census.gov/qfd/index.html 
U.S. Bureau of the Census state and county 
statistics, including type of household, race, 
population, school enrollment, and employment 
can be found on this Web site.

National Center for Education Statistics (NCES)
nces.ed.gov/ 
The NCES is the major source of educational 
statistics in the United States, including 
data from population surveys, surveys of 
educational establishments, and various kinds 
of administrative data.

National Center for Health Statistics
www.cdc.gov/nchs 
This site includes vital statistics data, 
including current data on births, deaths, 
marriages, infant mortality, and other topics. 
The home page provides current major surveys 
of American health.
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National Health and Nutrition Examination Survey 
(NHANES)
www.cdc.gov/nchs/nhanes.htm 
The National Health and Nutrition 
Examination Survey (NHANES) is a program 
of studies designed to assess the health and 
nutritional status of adults and children in 
the United States. The survey is unique in 
that it combines interviews and physical 
examinations. NHANES is a major program of 
the National Center of Health Statistics.

National Household Education Survey
nces.ed.gov/nhes 
This survey, conducted in 1993, had two 
different parts: School Readiness and School 
Safety and Discipline.

National Longitudinal Surveys (NLS)
stats.bls.gov/nls 
The NLS are a set of panel surveys that have 
gathered information on the labor market 
experiences of six groups of American men and 
women of different ages.

New Tithing Group
www.newtithing.org 
The Group’s educational resources include 
PrudentPal Charitable Giving Planner, an 
online budgeting tool; and Proprietary IRS-
Based Research on wealth and affordable 
donations.

Population Reference Bureau
www.prb.org 
The Population Reference Bureau provides 
U.S. and world population data. It also  
provides links to state data including  
population, economics, crime, education, and 
environmental information.

U.S. Bureau of the Census
www.census.gov 
This home page provides a basic introduction 
to the U.S. Bureau of the Census, the current 
state of Census 2000, various press releases, 
subscription information, and more. It has 
links to many other major sources of U.S. 
census data.

U.S. Bureau of the Census User Manual
www.census.gov/main/www/man_main.html 
This site gives more specific information on 
the use of census data, Bureau of the Census 
policies, how census data are made available  
(print media, CD-ROM, over the Internet), and 
other topics.

U.S. Census Bureau Tiger Mapping Service 
tiger.census.gov 
The TIGER (Topographically Integrated 
Geographic Encoding and Referencing) system 
is an electronic map of Census blocks. Tools on 
this site can produce maps of any area of the 
United States at the ZIP code, Census tract, or 
block group level.

U.S. Department of Agriculture
Washington, DC 20250  
vic.powell@usda.gov 
www.usda.gov 
This site contains information regarding  
the cost of raising children. The costs are  
broken into categories such as childcare,  
transportation, and housing. Differing costs  
are also estimated for single-parent and dual-
parent families.

U.S. Department of Justice
950 Pennsylvania Ave. NW 
Washington, DC 20530 
202-353-1555 
AskDOJ@usdoj.gov 
www.usdoj.gov  
Here you will find information on youth 
violence, victims of crimes, safe community 
initiative, and domestic violence. The site 
also contains a kids page with games and 
information of interest to youth.


